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2013 24
@
2025
1,689,555,817.95 33.19
1,530,452,678.50 30.06
978,788,899.02 19.23
774,068,300.24 15.21
4,972,865,695.71 97.69
117,763,043.63 2.31
5,090,628,739.34 100.00
( 18,479 )
@
2025
. ) )
()
FDTRY AKM 40.00PCT 2025/
1 0LIUL25 40.000 771 1,530,452,678.50| 1.00| 1,530,452,678.50( 1.00| 1,530,452,678.50| 30.06
TURKIYE T-BILL OPCT 2025/
2 23JUL25 0.000 7/23 999,972,402.00| 0.86 855,984,977.58| 0.98 978,788,899.02 19.23
TURKIYE GOVERNMENT 2026/
3 | BOND 37.000000 37.000 500,000,000.00( 0.98 489,894,000.00| 0.98 492,170,322.00 9.67
2/18
18Feb26
TURKIYE GOVERNMENT 2025/
4 BD OPCT 10SEP25 0.000 9/10 301,000,000.00( 0.70 211,715,560.00( 0.94 281,897,978.24 5.54
OYAK YATIRIM MENKUL 2025/
5 DEGE OPCT 26AUG25 0.000 8/26 300,000,000.00( 0.92 277,344,000.00( 0.93 279,861,333.35 5.50
QNB BANK AS OPCT 2025/
6 15AUG25 0.000 8/15 220,000,000.00( 0.86 189,501,400.00( 0.96 210,196,878.30 4.13
IS YATIRIM MENKUL 2025/
7 DEGERL OPCT 01AUG25 0.000 8/1 200,000,000.00| 0.84 168,286,000.00| 0.97 194,182,638.40 3.81
YAPI VE KREDI 2025/
8 | BANKASI AS OPCT 0.000 200,000,000.00| 0.76 151,396,000.00| 0.86 171,379,526.56 3.37
12/17
17DEC25
AK YATIRIM MENKUL 2025/
9 |DEG AS 42.6PCT 42.600 170,000,000.00( 1.00 169,943,900.00( 1.00 169,987,455.00 3.34
9/11
11SEP25
YAPI VE KREDI 2025/
10 |BANKASI AS OPCT 0.000 150,000,000.00( 0.76 113,991,000.00( 0.86 129,166,221.26 2.54
12/10
10DEC25
YAPI KREDI YAT MEN 2025/
11 OPCT 29JUL25 0.000 7/29 130,000,000.00( 0.84 109,703,100.00( 0.97 126,576,426.24 2.49
GARANTI FILO 2026/
12 | YONETIM 38.5PCT 38.500 120,000,000.00( 1.00 119,938,800.00( 1.00 119,945,155.26 2.36
2/19
19FEB26
IS FACTORING 2026/
13 | FINANSMAN 40.5PCT 40.500 1/29 102,500,000.00( 1.00 102,111,525.00( 1.00 102,254,891.32 2.01
29JAN26
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YAPI KREDI
14 | FAKTORING AS OPCT 0.000 270/2351/ 100,000,000.00| 0.84 84,239,000.00| 0.97 97,185,536.24| 1.91
313025
15 5%;”}‘8\@22 S 41.000 220/2168/ 90,000,000.00| 0.99 88,682,400.00| 0.99 88,819,756.02| 1.74
(2025 )
(2025 )
€)
2025
78,400,496.00 284,594 0.01 0.0363
(2016 19 )
134,183,223.78 487,085 0.01 0.0363
(2017 19 )
273,535,543.00 992,934 0.01 0.0363
(2018 19 )
470,023,300.00 1,706,185 0.01 0.0363
(2019 19 )
764,811,580.00 2,776,266 0.01 0.0363
(2020 19 )
870,720,973.00 3,160,717 0.01 0.0363
(2021 19 )
1,001,864,551.00 3,636,768 0.01 0.0363
(2022 19 )
10 1,487,375,721.00 5,399,174 0.01 0.0363
(2023 19 ) 70,809, 122 $39 : :
11 2,705,845,641.00 9,822,220 0.01 0.0363
(2024 19 ) ’ ’ ’ . ’ ’ ’ ’
12 4.,495,129,506.00 16,317,320 0.01 0.0363
(2025 19 ) P99y 285, 900 oL : :
2024 3,242,561,723.93 11,770,499 0.01 0.0363
3,360,324,185.51 12,197,977 0.01 0.0363
3,692,369,475.87 13,403,301 0.01 0.0363
10 3,832,104,781.40 13,910,540 0.01 0.0363
11 3,959,242 ,836.67 14,372,051 0.01 0.0363
12 4,040,439,986.61 14,666,797 0.01 0.0363
2025 4,495,876,287.85 16,320,031 0.01 0.0363
4,712,679,837.78 17,107,028 0.01 0.0363

45/226



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
ooooodooodooodnoodd

5,547,569,769.12 20,137,678 0.01 0.0363
5,197,066,248.20 18,865,350 0.01 0.0363
4,965,404,702.34 18,024,419 0.01 0.0363
5,090,628,739.34 18,478,982 0.01 0.0363

SRS KU | 124 D ORGSR
(2015%78 1 B~202556H%8)
(st e~V US) (@RS ERMNLOUS)
0.020 a0
WA (G
— 107 hsERE S (o)
0.015 6,000
0.010 56
0.005 2.000
; 0
201567A 2017475 2019%7H 2021478 2023%7A
2015 20 2016 19 0.000770311 0.002796229
2016 20 2017 19 0.000796358 0.002890780
2017 20 2018 19 0.001067952 0.003876666
2018 20 2019 19 0.001729305 0.006277377
.0015531 ) )
2019 20 2020 19 0.001553185 0.00563806
2020 20 2021 19 0.000921065 0.003343466
2021 20 2022 19 0.001553211 0.005638156
0 0.001706160 0.006193361
2022 20 2023 19 ' :
- 0.002594460 0.009417890
2023 20 2024 19 : :
. 0.004077028 0.014799612
2024 20 2025 19 ' :
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RECNLTUS, 1 QS0 R

{zﬂzoﬁgﬁ?}ﬁiﬁiBﬁigE} 0.000921065
1202&3%%?2?2%351955 0.001553211
{zuzgﬁggé;(?ﬁ?ﬂ%%miga} 0.001706160
{2ﬂ23¢%£§§0§§3ﬁ 19g) | 0002594460
{zozaﬁﬁggaﬁmlgeigsﬁ 19g) | 0-004077028
(20245%? ﬁiﬁﬁiﬁm 0.003998025

o 0.018761098

(2013895248~2025%6R%H)

2015 20 2016 19 7.70
2016 20 2017 19 7.96
2017 20 2018 19 10.68
2018 20 2019 19 17.29
2019 20 2020 19 15.53
2020 20 2021 19 9.21
2021 20 2022 19 15.53
2022 230 2023 19 17.06
2023 2;1 2024 19 25.94
2024 232 2025 19 40.77
() 00x( )
( )
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49.27%

21.15%

10.47%

8.44% 8.62%

0NE 2002F 2023F 20045 2005%

DIRE®. B Uy —2 (GEdE - (FIBOMARERERT0.01>
cetBL EEB(2013498248) %

A T o A @Bt TR, S8 U —
=ERLTLET

016&E 2017F 2018& 20195 20208

N o A A

202544181

2 ] TORBRTT
E3) B DR FT—2idEnED
4)
9,413,703,964 6,892,288,269 7,870,326,439
2015 20 2016 19 (9,019,260,444) (5,102,829,323) (7,580,326,439)
10,032,107,359 4,461,388,140 13,441,045,658
2016 20 2017 19 (10,020,091,799) (4,186,388,140)|  (13,414,030,098)
24,322,316,835 10,394,639,996 27,368,722,497
2017 20 2018 19 (24,319,332,225)| (10,394,639,996)|  (27,338,722,327)
38,681,929,759 19,040,728,343 47,009,923,913
2018 20 2019 19 (38,676,465,773)|  (19,040,728,343)|  (46,974,459,757)
76,745,710,420 47,274,479,480 76,481,154,853
2019 20 2020 19 (76,739,581,450) | (47,274,479,480)|  (76,439,561,727)
108,828,823,019 98,237,882,938 87,072,094,934
2020 20 2021 19 (108,825,012,802) | (98,237,882,938)| (87,026,691,591)
106,764,778,937 93,650,424,977 100,186,448 ,894
2021 20 2022 19 (106,757,269,475)|  (93,650,424,977)| (100,133,536,089)
10 149,392,402,943 | 100,841,286,578 148,737,565, 259
2022 20 2023 19 (149,382,690,062) | (100,841,286,578)| (148,674,939,573)
11 245,501,200,619 | 123,654,210,974 270,584,554 ,904
2023 20 2024 19 (245,483,786,800) | (123,654,210,974)| (270,504,515,399)
12 603,819,355,264 | 424,890,969,848 449,512,940,320
2024 20 2025 19 (603,779,891,013) | (424,890,969,848)| (449,393,436,564)
« )
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743,874
1,363,768
1,113,674

61,989

232,734

1,143,938
99,183

930,364
1,928,110
7,617,634
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4,490,583,841
4,545,665
4,495,129,506

449,058,373,828
454,566,492
449,512,940,320
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0.01

1
1
4,545,665
10
2025 19 2025
2025 19 2025 21
3,266,289,071
2,394,871,074

2025

Ak Finansal Kiralama As 47.5% 16-Apr-25

Ak Yatirim Menkul Deg 42.25% 06-May-25
Ak Yatirim Menkul Deg 42.6% 11-Sep-25
Is Factoring Finansman 40.5% 29-Jan-26
Is Yatirim Menkul Degerl 0% 01-Aug-25
OQNB Finansbank As Turkey 0% 11-Apr-25
Turkiye Government Bond 0% 09-Apr-25
Turkiye Government Bond 0% 10-Sep-25
Turkiye Government Bond 37% 18-Feb-26
Turkiye T-Bill 0% 23-Jul-25

Yapi Kredi Faktoring As 0% 31-Jul-25
Yapi Kredi Yat Men 0% 29-Jul-25

Yapi Ve Kredi Bankasi As 0% 10-Dec-25
Yapi Ve Kredi Bankasi As 0% 17-Dec-25

19

299,820,000

99,956,000
169,943,900
102,111,525
168,286,000

93,093,650
827,582,015
211,715,560
302,490,000
417,079,978

84,239,000
109,703,100
113,991,000
151,396,000

0.01

21

299,964,275

99,975,317
169,969,685
102,136,961
175,041,645
112,386,175

1,118,702,255

254,455,637
302,431,754
443,184,222

87,616,357
114,104,837
116,048,657
154,105,631

N W N W N O

w N N PO O o,

.67
.22
.78
.27
-89
.50
24.
.66
.73
.86
.95
.54
.58
.43

90

3,151,407,728

3,550,123,408
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As at March 19, 2025

Assets

Investment in debt securities, at fair value
(Cost: TRY3,550,123,408%)

Cash and cash equivalents

Subscriptions receivable

Interest receivable

Total Assets
Liabilities
Redemptions payable
Distributions payable
Other payables

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Net Asset Value (“NAV™) per Unit
(based on 449,512,940,320 Units outstanding)

*includes accreted interest.

2025

Notes TRY

3 3,550,123,408
6,7 964,269,639
16,841,710
79,064,160

4,610,298,917

12,296,045
95,255,732
8 7,617,634

115,169,411

9 4,495,129,506

5.9 TRY0.01

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

| D::f&hm

Signed on behalf of the Trustee:

Date: August 21, 2025
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Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 19, 2025

Investment income
Interest income
Accretion of acquisition discount

Total investment income

Expenses

Investment Manager fees
Sub-Investment Manager fees
Distributors and Agent Company fees
Manager fees

Administration fees

Custodian fees

Trustee fees

Audit fees

Other fees and expenses

Total expenses

Net investment income

Net increase in Net Assets resulting from operations

Notes

7.8
7,8

7.8
7.8
7.8
7.8

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2025
TRY

903,788,706

596,635,680

,500,424,386

—_—

10,619,522
19,469,125
15,925,550
884,960
3,045,517
4,247,809
1,415,936
930,364

3,220,646
59,759,429
1,440,664,957

1,440,664,957

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the year ended March 19, 2025

Operations
Net investment income

Net increase in Net Assets resulting from operations

Capital Transactions
Distributions to Unitholders

2025
TRY

1,440,664,957

1,440,664.957

(1,440,664,946)

Issuance of Units (603,819,355,264 Units) 6,038,193,553
Redemption of Units (424,890,969,848 Units) (4,248,909,699)
Net increase in Net Assets resulting from capital transactions 348,618,908

Net increase in Net Assets
Net Assets at beginning of year

Net Assets at end of year

1,789,283,865
2,705,845,641

4,495,129,506

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 19, 2025

Cash flows from operating activities
Net increase in Net Assets resulting from operations

Adjustments to reconcile net increase in Net Assets resulting from

operations to net cash and cash equivalents used in
operating activities:

Payments for purchase of debt securities
Proceeds from sale of debt securities
Accretion of acquisition discount
Decrease in interest receivable

Increase in other payables

Net cash and cash equivalents used in operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of Units
Increase in subscriptions receivable
Payments for redemption of Units
Increase in redemptions payable
Distributions paid to Unitholders

Net cash and cash equivalents provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplementary disclosure of non-cash financing activities:
Distributions to Unitholders reinvested as subscriptions

Notes

Lh Lh Uh Lh Lh

2025
TRY

1,440,664,957

(4,597,287,903)
3,238,600,000

(596,635,680)
13,092,998
3,010,285

(498,555,343)

4,953,345,497
(4,963,583)
(4,248,909.,699)
4,773,638

(315,084,994)

389,160,859

(109,394,484)
1,073,664,123

964,269,639

1,084,848.,057

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

10
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Financial Highlights
For the year ended March 19, 2025

2025
TRY
Per Unit operating performance:
NAYV per Unit, beginning of year 0.01
Income from investment operations (B)
Net investment income 0.0040
Total income from investment operations 0.0040
Less distributions (0.0040)
NAV per Unit, end of year 0.01
Ratios/supplemental data:
Ratio of total expenses to average Net Assets (A) {1.65)%
Ratio of net investment income to average Net Assets (A) 39.75%
Total Return (A) 39.75%

(A) Total return is calculated based on the change in NAV per Unit during the year. This return
includes the return associated with the distributed amount. Expense ratio and net investment
income ratio are calculated based on the average Net Assets outstanding throughout the year. The
financial highlights are reflected after all investment-related and operating expenses.

(B) Financial Highlights are calculated for the Unitholders taken as a whole. An individual
Unitholder’s return may vary based upon participation in certain investments, fee arrangements

and timing of capital transactions. Per Unit information is calculated based upon the monthly
average Units outstanding during the year.

11
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 19, 2025

1. Description of the Trust

Turkish Lira Money Market Fund (the “Series Trust”) is a series trust of Multi Strategies Fund (the
“Trust™). The Trust is an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a master trust deed dated June
10, 2013 and made between the Trustee and the Manager. The Trust has been constituted as an
umbrella unit trust under the Trusts Act (as Revised) of the Cayman Islands and registered under the
Mutual Funds Act (as Revised) of the Cayman Islands on June 18, 2013. A separate portfolio or series
trust can be created and established to which assets and liabilities attributable to the relevant series
trust will be applied. The Master Trust Deed is governed by the laws of the Cayman Islands.

As at March 19, 2025 there is one series trust of the Trust, which is the Series Trust, which
commenced operations on September 24, 2013. These financial statements comprise only the accounts
of the Series Trust.

The investment abjective of the Series Trust is to preserve principal value and maintain a high degree
of liquidity while providing current income by investing in Turkish Lira denominated short term
financial instruments, including but not limited to municipal bonds, corporate bonds, certificates of
deposit, asset backed securities, bank deposits and repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements.

International Management Services Lid. (the “Manager”) is the Manager, Sompo Asset Management
Co., Ltd. (the “Investment Manager™) is the Investment Manager, Ak Portfoy Yonetimi A.S. (the
“Sub-Investment Manager”) is the Sub-Investment Manager and Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank,
Limited (London Branch) (the “Custodian™) is the Custodian. The administration of the Series Trust is
delegated to SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Administrator”).

The Series Trust had no employees during the year or as at March 19, 2025,
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements are prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(“US GAAP™). The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

The financial statements have been prepared in Turkish Lira (“TRY™), which is the Series Trust’s
functional currency (the “Functional currency™).

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Series Trust
operates. If indicators of the primary economic environment are mixed, then the Trustee uses its
judgement to determine the functional currency that most faithfully represents the economic effect of
the underlying transactions, events and conditions. The majority of the Series Trust's investments and
transactions are denominated in TRY. Investor subscriptions and redemptions are determined based on
NAV, and received and paid in TRY. The expenses (including trustee fees, investment management
fees, administration fees and custodian fees) are denominated and paid in TRY. Accordingly, the
Trustee has determined that the functional currency of the Series Trust is TRY.

The Series Trust is considered an investment company under US GAAP and follows the accounting
and reporting guidance applicable to investment companies in the Financial Accounting Standards

Board’s (“FASB™) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC™) Topic 946, Financial Services -
Investment Companies.

12
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 19, 2025
(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In the opinion of the Investment Manager, the Series Trust possesses the fundamental characteristics of
an investment company because the following conditions exist:

i. The Series Trust obtains funds from investors and provides those investors with investment
management services.

ii. The business purpose and only substantive activities, which were communicated to investors, are
investing solely for returns from capital appreciation and investment income.

ili. The Series Trust has identified exit strategies for the investments it holds for returns from capital
appreciation,

iv. The Series Trust does not have an objective of obtaining results or benefits other than capital
appreciation and investment income from its investments.

In the opinion of the Investment Manager, the Series Trust also possesses the typical characteristics of
an investment company:

i. The Series Trust holds more than one investment.

ii. The Series Trust is funded by multiple investors.

iii. The Series Trust has investors that hold a significant interest in the Series Trust and are not related
to the Investment Manager.

iv. Ownership in the Series Trust is represented by equity interests acquired through capital
contributions.

v. The Series Trust manages and evaluates performance of investments on a fair value basis.

Use of estimates and judgments

Preparing financial statements in accordance with US GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions in determining the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, including fair value of
investments and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as at March 19, 2025 and the reported
amounts of income and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Valuation of investments

Investments consist of corporate bonds, municipal bonds and deposits. Debt securities such as
corporate bonds and municipal bonds with a remaining maturity of less than one year are valued at fair
value using an amortized cost technique (i.e. at their acquisition cost as adjusted for the amortization
of premium or accretion of discount) as the best estimate of fair value. The Manager, through its
delegates, continuously reviews the amortized cost method to ensure that investments are stated at
their fair market value.

Investment transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. At year end, all investments are valued
as at March 18, 2025, due to March 19, 2025 being a non-business day in accordance with the Series
Trust’s Appendix to the Trust’s Offering Memorandum.

Realized gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Operations and determined on a first-in-

first-out basis. Movements in fair value are recorded in the Statement of Operations at each valuation
date.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 19, 2025
(Continued)

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

The Trustee has appoinied Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited (London Branch) (the “Custodian™)
as custodian. The Custodian has, in turn, appointed Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (“BBH”) as its
sub-custodian (the “Sub-Custodian™). Cash balances are held with the Sub-Custodian at year end.

Cash, including cash denominated in foreign currencies, represents cash on hand and demand deposits
held at financial institutions. Cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid investments of
sufficient credit quality that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and have original
maturities of three months or less. Cash equivalents are carried at cost, plus accrued interest, which
approximates fair value. Cash equivalents are held for short-term liquidity requirements, rather than for
investment purposes. Cash and cash equivalents at March 19, 2025, is comprised of cash held with the
Sub-Custodian and deposits with maturities of 3 months or less held with Akbank Malta,

Cash and other liquid assets are valued at their face value with coupon interest receivable accrued,
where applicable, to the end of the relevant day.

The Series Trust does not hold any restricted cash at the year end or during the year.

Investment income
Interest income on investments held is recognized on an accruals basis. Discounts and premiums on
debt securities are amortized and accreted using the effective interest rate method over the life of the
respective securities.

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Foreign exchange transactions

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into TRY at the closing rate of
exchange on March 18, 2025 due to March 19, 2025 being a non-business day with foreign currency
gains and losses reflected in the Statement of Operations. Purchases and sales of securities and income
and expenses are translated at the prevailing rate of exchange on the respective dates of such
transactions. Unrealized gains and losses are calculated by comparing the fair value of the investments
to the prices at which those assets were originally purchased.

The Series Trust does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in
foreign exchange rates on investments from the fluctuations arising from changes in the market prices

of securities. Such fluctuations are included in net realized gain on investments in the Statement of
Operations.

14
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 19, 2025
(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Offsetting assets and liabilities

The Series Trust is required to disclose the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities presented in the
Statement of Assets and Liabilities to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the effect or
potential effect of netting arrangements on its financial position for recognized assets and liabilities.
These recognized assets and liabilities are financial instruments and derivative instruments that are
either subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement or meet the following
right of set-off criteria: the amounts owed by the Series Trust to another party are determinable, the
Series Trust has the right to set-off the amounts owed with the amounts owed by the other party, the
Series Trust intends to set-off, and the Series Trust’s right of set-off is enforceable at law.

Taxation

The Series Trust is a Cayman Islands exempted Trust. Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands,
there are no income, estate, transfer, sale or other taxes payable by the Series Trust. The Series Trust
trades stocks and securities for its own account and, as such, is generally not subject to U.S. tax on
such earnings (other than certain withholding taxes indicated below). The Investment Manager intends
to conduct the business of the Series Trust to the maximum extent practicable so that the Series Trust’s
activities do not constitute a U.S. trade or business. Interest and other income realized by the Series
Trust from non-U.S. sources and capital gains realized on the sale of securities of non-U.S. issuers may
be subject to withholding and other taxes levied by the jurisdiction in which the income is sourced. In
accordance with the Trusts Act (as Revised), the Trust has received an undertaking exempting it from
all local taxes in the Cayman Islands for a period of 50 years from the date of creation of the Trust.

ASC 740, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”, clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in the Series Trust’s financial statements. ASC 740 prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. ASC 740 requires that the enterprise determines
whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination, including
resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position.
In evaluating whether a tax position has met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the
enterprise should presume that the position will be examined by the appropriate taxing authority that
has full knowledge of all relevant information. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold is measured to determine the amount of benefit to recognize in the financial
statements. The tax position is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely
of being realized upon settlement.

The Investment Manager has analyzed the Series Trust's tax positions and has concluded that no
liability for unrecognized tax benefits should be recorded related to uncertain tax positions.
Furthermore, the Investment Manager is not aware of any tax positions for which it is reasonably
possible that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly change in the next twelve
months.

15
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 19, 2025
(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Guarantees and/or Indemnifications

In the normal course of business the Series Trust enters into contracts that contain a variety of
representations, which provide general indemnifications. The Series Trust’'s maximum exposure under
these arrangements is unknown, as this would involve future claims that may be made against the
Series Trust that have not yet occurred. However, based on experience, the Series Trust expects the
risk of loss to be remote.

Distribution policy

The Manager, through its delegates, declares distributions on each dealing day. The amount per Unit
distributed is a sum equal to the amount required to maintain the relevant NAV per Unit on each
dealing day at TRY0.01. Distributions payable are recognized in the Statement of Changes in Net
Assets when they are declared.

Classification of redemptions

ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity, recognizes redemptions as liabilities, when the
amount requested in the redemption notice becomes fixed. This generally may occur at the time of the
receipt of the notice, or on the last day of a fiscal year, depending on the nature of the request. As a
result, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but based upon year end capital balance are reflected
as redemptions payable at March 19, 2025.

3. Fair Value Measurements

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value. Fair value is defined as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e., the “exit price™) in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

A fair value hierarchy of inputs is used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable
inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be
used when available. Observable inputs are those that market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Series Trust.
Unobservable inputs reflect the Series Trust’s assumptions about the inputs market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the
circumstances.

The fair value hierarchy is categorized into three levels based on the inputs as follows:

- Level 1 — Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Series Trust has the ability to access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability either directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

- Level 3 — Inputs that are unobservable and significant to the entire fair value measurement.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that
market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 19, 2025
{Continued)

3. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input
that is significant to the fair value measurement. The Manager considers observable data to be that
market data which is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not
proprietary and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The categorization of a financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing
transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily correspond to the Manager’s perceived risk of
that instrument.

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets are classified within
Level 1.

Investments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on quoted
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are
classified within Level 2. As Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active
markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity
and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information.

Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently
or not at all. The Series Trust did not hold any Level 3 investments at March 19, 2025.

The following table presents the investments of the Series Trust measured at fair value within the fair
valuation hierarchy as of March 19, 2025:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TRY TRY TRY TRY

Assets
Debt securities 1,816,342,114 1,733,781,294 - 3.550,123,408

1,816,342,114  1,733,781,294 3,550,123,408

There were no transfers of assets between levels during the year.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 19, 2025
{Continued)

4. Financial Instruments and Related Risks

The main risks arising from the Series Trust’s financial instruments can be summarized as follows:

Market Risk
The Statement of Assets and Liabilities as of March 19, 2025, includes the fair value of deht securities.
These investments involve exposure to market risk.

The Series Trust’s strategy for the assumption of and management of market risk is driven by the
investment objective, which is disclosed in Note 1.

The value of the Series Trust’s financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices caused by factors other than interest rates or foreign currency movement.

Interest Rate Risk

Increases in interest rates typically lower the present value of the Series Trust’s future earnings stream.
Since the market price of a security changes continuously based upon the investors’ collective
perceptions of future earnings, security prices will generally decline when investors anticipate or
experience rising interest rates.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk represents the possibility that the Series Trust may not be able to rapidly adjust the size
of its investment position in times of high volatility and financial stress at a reasonable price.

The main liability of the Series Trust is the redemption of any Units that investors may wish to sell.
The Series Trust is exposed to daily cash redemptions of Redeemable Participating Units.

The liquidity of the Series Trust is a factor of the liquidity of the underlying investments. The Series
Trust’s assets mainly consist of readily realizable securities. In the opinion of the Manager this should
enable the payment of the Series Trust’s liabilities and any Unitholder’s redemption of Redeemable
Participating Units.

In the opinion of the Investment Manager, the majority of assets of the Series Trust held at March 19,
2025, can be liguidated within one month in normal circumstances.

Currency Risk

Since all of the investments and cash and cash equivalents of the Series Trust are denominated in the
functional currency of the Series Trust, the Statement of Assets and Liabilities and Statement of
Operations will not be significantly affected by currency movements.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 19, 2025
(Continued)

4. Financial Instruments and Related Risks (continued)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is measured by the loss the Series Trust would record if its counterparties failed to perform
pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Series Trust. The Trust will be exposed to credit risk on
parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of settlement default. In particular, the Series
Trust is exposed to credit risk with BBH, which has a Fitch credit rating of A+ and Akbank Malta
(Note 6) which has a Fitch credit rating of AA- (National Long Term Rating). The Custodian is the
London branch of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited which has a Fitch credit rating of A-.

The Series Trust invests in debt securities. Adverse changes in the financial condition of the issuer, or
in general economic conditions, or both, or an unanticipated rise in interest rates, may impair the
ability of the issuer to make payments of interest and principal. The inability of issuers to make timely
payments of interest and principal may affect the value of securities held for the account of the Series
Trust. In the absence of a liquid trading market for certain securities it may not be possible to establish
the fair value of such securities in accordance with the valuation methodology of the Series Trust.
Furthermore, the credit risk of making such investments in emerging economies, generally tends to be
greater when compared to investing in developed countries.

As at March 19, 2025, the Series Trust invested in debt securities with the following credit quality:

Credit Rating TRY %
(TR) AAA* 444 986,647 12.53
(TR) AA+* 2,220,910,828 62.56
(TR) AA* 112,386,175 3.17
(TR) AA-* 771,839,758 21.74
Total 3,550,123,408 100.00

* National long term rating (JCR and S&P national)

The Trustee has appointed the Custodian, the Custodian has in turn appointed the Sub-Custodian. Both
the cash and securities are ultimately held at the Sub-Custodian, with cash being held at the Sub-
Custodian as banker. The Series Trust’s securities are maintained by the Sub-Custodian in segregated
accounts, thus in the event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Sub-Custodian, the Series Trust's assets
are segregated.

The Series Trust will, however, be exposed to the credit risk of the Sub-Custodian, or any depository
used by the Custodian or Sub-Custodian, in relation to the Series Trust’s cash. In the event of
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Sub-Custodian, the Series Trust will be treated as a general creditor of
the Sub-Custodian in relation to cash holdings of the Series Trust.

An investment universe which lists all the ratings of eligible securities that the Series Trust has traded
in is maintained, and monitored daily to record rating changes by Fitch. Any rating changes are
reported to the Investment Manager.

Bankruptey or insolvency of the Sub-Custodian may cause the Series Trust rights with respect to its
investments in debt securities held by the bank to be delayed or limited.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 19, 2025
{Continued)

5. Unit Capital

As a result of the ability to issue and redeem Units, the capital of the Series Trust can vary depending
on the demand for subscriptions and redemptions to/from the Series Trust. The minimum amount of
subscriptions or redemptions per Unitholder is one Unit and thereafter in one Unit increments.

Units are redeemable on each business day subject to the submission of a repurchase notice by no later
than 8am (Dublin time) on the relevant business day or such other deadline as the Investment Manager
may determine at the NAV per Unit prevailing at the close of business on the preceding valuation day,
failing which the repurchase request will be held over until the following dealing day and Units will be
redeemed at the repurchase price applicable for that dealing day.

The movements in the number of Units issued during the year ended March 19, 2025 are as follows:

Number of Units
Number of Units outstanding as at beginning of year 270,584.554,904
Number of Units issued 603,819,355.264
Number of Units redeemed (424,890,969,848)
Number of Units outstanding as at end of year 449,512,940,320

During the year ended March 19, 2025, distributions of TRY1,440,664.946 were declared of which
TRY1,084,848,057 was reinvested back into the Series Trust.

6. Cash and Cash Equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents at March 19, 2025, is comprised of cash held with the Sub-Custodian and
deposits with maturities of 3 months or less held with Akbank Malta are as follows:

TRY
Cash - BEH 25,182,260
Deposit — Akbank Malta 939,087,379
Total 964269=639

7. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. In the opinion of
the Manager there were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of
business. The Manager, Investment Manager, Sub-Investment Manager, Trustee, Administrator,
Custodian and Akbank T.A.S. which is the counterparty to the deposits and holds 119,503,756 Units in
the Series Trust, are deemed to be related to the Series Trust. The Series Trust has deposits of
TRY939,087,379 with Akbank Malta (Note 6). Fees incurred with related parties during the year are
disclosed in the Statement of Operations and Note 8. Amounts payable to related parties at the year
end are disclosed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities and Note 8. Three investors hold an
investment of 21.80%, 13.70% and 10.39%, respectively in the Series Trust. As a result, any actions of
these related parties can materially impact the Series Trust.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 19, 2025

(Continued)

8. Fees and Expenses

The Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.025% per annum of the
NAYV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in US Dollars monthly in arrears,
subject to a minimum fee of TRY40,000 per calendar year.

The Trustee receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.04% per annum of the
NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in Euro monthly in arrears,
subject to a minimum fee of TRY43,000 per calendar year.

The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.30% per
annum of the NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in Japanese Yen
monthly in arrears.

The Sub-Investment Manager receives a fee at the rate of 0.55% per annum of the NAV, accrued on and
calculated as at each valuation day and payable in TRY monthly in arrears.

The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.08% per annum of
the NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in Euro monthly in arrears,
subject to a minimum fee of TRY8,900 per month. The Administrator will also be paid an audit
assistance fee of an amount equivalent in Euro to TRY$,900. In addition, the Administrator will also be
paid a fee of TRY270 in respect of each new Unitholder and a fee of TRY45 for each update of the
Register that it is required to undertake. The Administrator is also reimbursed for any reasonable out-of-
pocket expenses necessarily incurred in the performance of its duties.

The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.12% per annum of the
NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in US Dollars monthly in arrears,
subject to a minimum fee in US Dollars of an amount equivalent to TRY2,100 per month. The
Custodian is also reimbursed for any reasonable out-of-pocket expenses necessarily incurred in the
performance of its duties.

The distributors receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.35% per annum of the
NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in Japanese Yen monthly in
arrears. As at year end, there were 30 distributors to the Series Trust.

The Agent Company receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.10% per annum

of the NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in Japanese Yen monthly in
arrears.

21

95/226



EDINETOOOO

o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
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{Continued)

8. Fees and Expenses (continued)

The fees payable as at March 19, 2025 are as follows:

Investment Manager fees
Sub-Investment Manager fees
Distributors and Agent Company fees
Manager fees

Administration fees

Custodian fees

Trustee fees

Audit fees

Other fees and expenses

. Reconciliation of the Dealing NAV to NAV per Financial Statements

Reported NAV
Trade date adjustment
NAY attributable to Holders of Units per Financial Statements

Number of Units per Reported NAV
Trade date adjustment

Number of Units per Financial Statements
Reported NAV per Unit

NAYV per Unit per Financial Statements

TRY
743,874
1,363,768
1,113,674
61,989
232,734
1,143,938
99,183
930,364
1,928,110

7,617,634

2025

TRY
4,490,583,841
4,545,665

4,495,129,506

449,058,373,828
454,566,492

449,512,940,320

0.01

0.01

For Unitholder dealing purposes, transactions are accounted for on a trade date plus 1 business day
basis. For financial reporting purposes, transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. Transactions
occurring between close of business on the last trade date and the financial reporting year end date have

required an adjustment of TRY4,545,665.

10. Subsequent Events

The Manager has performed a subsequent review from March 19, 2025 through to August 21, 2025
being the date that the financial statements were available to be issued. From March 19, 2025 through to
August 21, 2025 investors subscribed TRY3,266,289,071 into the Series Trust and redeemed

TRY2,394.871,074 capital from the Series Trust.

There was an updated Appendix for the Series Trust in August 2025,

The Manager concluded that there were no other subsequent events which required additional disclosure

in these financial statements.
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Schedule of Investments
March 19, 2025

Original Fair
Cost* Value % of

Debt Securities TRY TRY NAV
Turkey
Ak Finansal Kiralama As 47.5% 16-Apr-25 299,820,000 299,964,275 6.67
Ak Yatirim Menkul Deg 42.25% 06-May-25 99,956,000 99,975,317 222
Ak Yatirim Menkul Deg 42.6% 11-Sep-25 169,943,900 169,969,685 3.78
Is Factoring Finansman 40.5% 29-Jan-26 102,111,525 102,136,961 2.27
Is Yatirim Menkul Degerl 0% 01-Aug-25 168,286,000 175,041,645 3.89
OQNB Finansbank As Turkey 0% 11-Apr-25 93,093,650 112,386,175 2.50
Turkiye Government Bond 0% 09-Apr-25 827,582,015 1,118,702,255 24.90
Turkiye Government Bond 0% 10-Sep-25 211,715,560 254,455,637 5.66
Turkiye Government Bond 37% 18-Feb-26 302,490,000 302,431,754 6.73
Turkiye T-Bill 0% 23-Jul-25 417,079,978 443,184,222 9.86
Yapi Kredi Faktoring As 0% 31-Jul-25 84,239,000 87,616,357 1.95
Yapi Kredi Yat Men 0% 29-Jul-25 109,703,100 114,104,837 2.54
Yapi Ve Kredi Bankasi As 0% 10-Dec-25 113,991,000 116,048,657 2.58
Yapi Ve Kredi Bankasi As 0% 17-Dec-25 151,396,000 154,105,631 343
Investments in Debt Securities, as fair value 3,151,407,728 3,550,123,408 78.98
Deposits (less than 3 monihs)
Malta
FDTRY Akbank Malta 41% 21-Mar-25 939,087,379 939,087,379 20.89
Total Deposits (Less than 3 months) 939,087,379 939,087,379 20.89

* Amortized cost disclosed on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities includes accreted interest.
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4,355,720
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4,355,720
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As at March 19, 2024

2024

Note TRY
Assets
Investment in debt securities, at fair value
(Cost: TRY1,594,799,825%) 3 1,594,799,825
Cash and cash equivalents 6 1,073,664,123
Subscriptions receivable 11,878,127
Interest receivable 92,157,158
Total Assets 2,772,499,233
Liabilities
Redemptions payable 7.522.407
Distributions payable 54,523,836
Other payables 8 4,607,349
Total Liabilities 66,653,592
Net Assets 9 2,705,845,641
Net Asset Value (“NAV”) per Unit
(based on 270,584,554,904 Units outstanding) 5,9 TRY0.01

*includes accreted interest.
The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
Signed on behalf of the Trustee:
DocuSigned by: Signed by:
[Eémr (urtin | Dasid. Bk

Date: August 22, 2024
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Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 19, 2024

Investment income
Interest income
Accretion of acquisition discount

Total investment income

Expenses

Investment Manager fees
Sub-Investment Manager fees
Distributors and Agent Company fees
Manager fees

Administration fees
Custodian fees

Trustee fees

Audit fees

Negative yield expense

Other fees and expenses

Total expenses
Net investment income

Net realized gain on investments

Net increase in Net Assets resulting from operations

Note

7.8
7.8
7.8

7.8

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024
TRY

386,321,088

153,715,036

540,036,124

5,705,074
10,459,303
8,553,828
475,423
1,726,001
2,282,030
760,677
773,618
153

2,878,367

33,614,474

506,421,650
43,333

506,464,983

f

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the year ended March 19, 2024

2024

TRY
Operations
Net investment income 506,421,650
Net realized gain on investments 43,333
Net increase in Net Assets resulting from operations 506,464,983
Capital Transactions
Distributions to Unitholders (506,464,959)
Issuance of Units (245,501,200,619 Units) 2,455,012,006
Redemption of Units (123,654,210,974 Units) (1,236,542,110)
Net increase in Net Assets resulting from capital transactions 712,004,937
Net increase in Net Assets 1,218,469,920
Net Assets at beginning of year 1,487,375,721
Net Assets at end of year 2,705,845,641

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

116/226



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 19, 2024

2024

Note TRY
Cash flows from operating activities
Net increase in Net Assets resulting from operations 506,464,983
Adjustments to reconcile net increase in Net Assets resulting from
operations to net cash and cash equivalents used in
operating activities:
Payments for purchase of debt securities (3,973,008,985)
Payments for purchase of repurchase agreements (7,967,000,000)
Proceeds from sale of debt securities 3,249,746,763
Proceeds from settlement of repurchase agreements 8.144,000,000
Net realized gain on investments (43,333)
Increase in interest receivable (51,642,160)
Increase in other payables 1,656,780
Net cash and cash equivalents used in operating activities (89,825,952)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of Units 5 2,088,799,630
Increase in Subscriptions receivable 5 (5,517,898)
Payments for redemption of Units 5 (1,236,542,110)
Increase in Redemptions payable 5 6.009.644
Distributions paid to Unitholders 5 (100,249,141)
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by financing activities 752,500,125
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 662,674,173
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 410,989,950
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 6 1,073,664,123
Supplementary disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest (153)
Supplementary disclosure of noncash financing activities:
Distributions to Unitholders reinvested as subscriptions 366,212,376

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2024
TRY
Per Unit operating performance:
NAV per Unit, beginning of year 0.01
Income from investment operations (B)
Net investment income 0.0026
Total income from investment operations 0.0026
Less distributions (0.0026)
NAV per Unit, end of year 0.01
Ratios/supplemental data:
Ratio of total expenses to average Net Assets (A) (1.73)%
Ratio of net investment income to average Net Assets (A) 26.09%
Total Return (A) 26.09%

(A) Total return is calculated based on the change in NAV per Unit during the year. This return
includes the return associated with the distributed amount. Expense ratio and net investment
income ratio are calculated based on the average Net Assets outstanding throughout the year. The
financial highlights are reflected after all investment-related and operating expenses.

(B) Financial Highlights are calculated for the Unitholders taken as a whole. An individual
unitholder’s return may vary based upon participation in certain investments, fee arrangements and

timing of capital transactions. Per Unit information is calculated based upon the monthly average
Units outstanding during the year.
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For the year ended March 19, 2024

1. Description of the Trust

Turkish Lira Money Market Fund (the “Series Trust”) is a series trust of Multi Strategies Fund (the
“Trust™). The Trust is an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a master trust deed dated June
10, 2013 and made between the Trustee and the Manager. The Trust has been constituted as an
umbrella unit trust under the Trusts Act (as Revised) of the Cayman Islands and registered under the
Mutual Funds Act (as Revised) of the Cayman Islands on June 18, 2013. A separate portfolio or series
trust can be created and established to which assets and liabilities attributable to the relevant series
trust will be applied. The Master Trust Deed is governed by the laws of the Cayman Islands.

As at March 19, 2024 there is one series trust of the Trust, which is the Series Trust, which
commenced operations on September 24, 2013. These financial statements comprise only the accounts
of the Series Trust.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to preserve principal value and maintain a high degree
of liquidity while providing current income by investing in Turkish Lira denominated short term
financial instruments, including but not limited to municipal bonds, corporate bonds, certificates of
deposit, asset backed securities, bank deposits and repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements.

International Management Services Ltd. (the “Manager™) is the Manager, Sompo Asset Management
Co., Ltd. (the “Investment Manager™) is the Investment Manager, Ak Portfdy Yénetimi A.S. (the
“Sub-Investment Manager”) is the Sub-Investment Manager and Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank,
Limited (London Branch) (the “Custodian™) is the Custodian. The administration of the Series Trust is
delegated to SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Administrator”).

The Series Trust had no employees during the year or as at March 19, 2024.
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements are prepared in conformity with US generally accepted accounting principles
(*US GAAP”). The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

The financial statements have been prepared in Turkish Lira (“TRY™), which is the Series Trust’s
functional currency (the “Functional currency™).

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Series Trust
operates. If indicators of the primary economic environment are mixed, then the Trustee uses its
judgement to determine the functional currency that most faithfully represents the economic effect of
the underlying transactions, events and conditions. The majority of the Series Trust's investments and
transactions are denominated in TRY. Investor subscriptions and redemptions are determined based on
NAV, and received and paid in TRY. The expenses (including trustee fees, investment management
fees, administration fees and custodian fees) are denominated and paid in TRY. Accordingly, the
Trustee has determined that the functional currency of the Series Trust is TRY.

The Series Trust is considered an investment company under US GAAP and follows the accounting
and reporting guidance applicable to investment companies in the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB™) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC™) Topic 946, Financial Services -
Investment Companies.
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(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In the opinion of the Investment Manager, the Series Trust possesses the fundamental characteristics of
an investment company because the following conditions exist:

i. The Series Trust obtains funds from investors and provides those investors with investment
management services.

ii. The business purpose and only substantive activities, which were communicated to investors, are
investing solely for returns from capital appreciation and investment income.

iii. The Series Trust has identified exit strategies for the investments it holds for returns from capital
appreciation.

iv. The Series Trust does not have an objective of obtaining results or benefits other than capital
appreciation and investment income from its investments.

In the opinion of the Investment Manager, the Series Trust also possesses the typical characteristics of
an investment company:

i. The Series Trust holds more than one investment.

ii. The Series Trust is funded by multiple investors.

iii. The Series Trust has investors that hold a significant interest in the Series Trust and are not related
to the Investment Manager.

iv. Ownership in the Series Trust is represented by equity interests acquired through capital
contributions.

v. The Series Trust manages and evaluates performance of investments on a fair value basis.

Use of estimates and judgments

Preparing financial statements in accordance with US GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions in determining the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, including fair value of
investments and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as at March 19, 2024 and the reported
amounts of income and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Valuation of investments

Investments consist of corporate bonds, municipal bonds, deposits and repurchase agreements. Debt
securities such as corporate bonds and municipal bonds with a remaining maturity of less than one
year are valued at fair value using an amortized cost technique (i.e. at their acquisition cost as adjusted
for the amortization of premium or accretion of discount) as the best estimate of fair value. The
Manager, through its delegates, continuously reviews the amortized cost method to ensure that
investments are stated at their fair market value.

When the Series Trust purchases a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an agreement to
resell the asset at a fixed price on a future date (“repurchase agreement™), the arrangement is
accounted for as a receivable (“receivables from repurchase agreements™), and the underlying asset is
not recognized on the Series Trust’s financial statements. When the Series Trust sells a financial asset
and simultaneously enters into an agreement to repurchase the same asset at a fixed price on a future
date, the agreement is accounted for as borrowings (“payables under repurchase agreements™), and the
underlying asset is not derecognized in the Series Trust’s financial statements. Receivables and
payables from repurchase agreements are initially measured at fair value less incremental direct
transaction costs, and subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest method. As
of March 19, 2024, the Series Trust held no repurchase agreements.
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(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Valuation of investments (continued)

Investment transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. At year end, all investments are valued
as at March 15, 2024, due to March 16, 17, 18 and 19, 2024 each being a non-business day in
accordance with the Series Trust’s Appendix to the Trust’s Offering Memorandum.

Realized gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Operations and determined on a first-in-
first-out basis. Movements in fair value are recorded in the Statement of Operations at each valuation
date.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Trustee has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited (London Branch) (the “Custodian)
as custodian. The Custodian has, in turn, appointed Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (“BBH”) as its
sub-custodian (the “Sub-Custodian™). Cash balances are held with the Sub-Custodian at year end.

Cash, including cash denominated in foreign currencies, represents cash on hand and demand deposits
held at financial institutions. Cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid investments of
sufficient credit quality that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and have original
maturities of three months or less. Cash equivalents are carried at cost, plus accrued interest, which
approximates fair value. Cash equivalents are held for short-term liquidity requirements, rather than for
investment purposes. Cash and cash equivalents at March 19, 2024, is comprised of cash held with the
Sub-Custodian and deposits with maturities of 3 months or less held with Akbank Malta

Cash and other liquid assets are valued at their face value with coupon interest receivable accrued,
where applicable, to the end of the relevant day.

The Series Trust does not hold any restricted cash at the year end or during the year.

Investment income
Interest income on investments held is recognized on an accruals basis. Discounts and premiums on
debt securities are amortized and acereted using the effective interest rate method over the life of the
respective securities.

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Foreign exchange transactions

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into TRY at the closing rates of
exchange on March 15, 2024, due to March 16, 17, 18 and 19, 2024 each being a non-business day,
with foreign currency gains and losses reflected in the Statement of Operations. Purchases and sales of
securities and income and expenses are translated at the prevailing rate of exchange on the respective
dates of such transactions. Unrealized gains and losses are calculated by comparing the fair value of
the investments to the prices at which those assets were originally purchased.

The Series Trust does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in
foreign exchange rates on investments from the fluctuations arising from changes in the market prices
of securities. Such fluctuations are included in net realized gain on investments in the Statement of
Operations.

14

121/226



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 19, 2024

(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Offsetting assets and liabilities

The Series Trust is required to disclose the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities presented in the
Statement of Assets and Liabilities to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the effect or
potential effect of netting arrangements on its financial position for recognized assets and liabilities.
These recognized assets and liabilities are financial instruments and derivative instruments that are
either subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement or meet the following
right of set-off criteria: the amounts owed by the Series Trust to another party are determinable, the
Series Trust has the right to set-off the amounts owed with the amounts owed by the other party, the
Series Trust intends to set-off, and the Series Trust’s right of set-off is enforceable at law.

Taxation

The Series Trust is a Cayman Islands exempted Trust. Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands,
there are no income, estate, transfer, sale or other taxes payable by the Series Trust. The Series Trust
trades stocks and securities for its own account and, as such, is generally not subject to U.S. tax on
such earnings (other than certain withholding taxes indicated below). The Investment Manager intends
to conduct the business of the Series Trust to the maximum extent practicable so that the Series Trust’s
activities do not constitute a U.S. trade or business. Interest and other income realized by the Series
Trust from non-U.S. sources and capital gains realized on the sale of securities of non-U.S. issuers may
be subject to withholding and other taxes levied by the jurisdiction in which the income is sourced. In
accordance with the Trusts Act (as Revised), the Trust has received an undertaking exempting it from
all local taxes in the Cayman Islands for a period of 50 years from the date of creation of the Trust.

ASC 740, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”, clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in the Series Trust’s financial statements. ASC 740 prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. ASC 740 requires that the enterprise determines
whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination, including
resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position.
In evaluating whether a tax position has met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the
enterprise should presume that the position will be examined by the appropriate taxing authority that
has full knowledge of all relevant information. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold is measured to determine the amount of benefit to recognize in the financial
statements. The tax position is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely
of being realized upon settlement.

The Investment Manager has analyzed the Series Trust’s tax positions and has concluded that no
liability for unrecognized tax benefits should be recorded related to uncertain tax positions.
Furthermore, the Investment Manager is not aware of any tax positions for which it is reasonably
possible that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly change in the next twelve
months.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Guarantees and/or Indemnifications

In the normal course of business the Series Trust enters into contracts that contain a variety of
representations, which provide general indemnifications. The Series Trust’s maximum exposure under
these arrangements is unknown, as this would involve future claims that may be made against the
Series Trust that have not yet occurred. However, based on experience, the Series Trust expects the
risk of loss to be remote.

Distribution policy

The Manager, through its delegates, declares distributions on each dealing day. The amount per Unit
distributed is a sum equal to the amount required to maintain the relevant NAV per Unit on each
dealing day at TRYO0.01. Distributions payable are recognized in the Statement of Changes in Net
Assets when they are declared.

Classification of redemptions

ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity, recognizes redemptions as liabilities, when the
amount requested in the redemption notice becomes fixed. This generally may occur at the time of the
receipt of the notice, or on the last day of a fiscal year, depending on the nature of the request. As a
result, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but based upon year end capital balance are reflected
as redemptions payable at March 19, 2024,

3. Fair Value Measurements

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value. Fair value is defined as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e., the “exit price”) in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

A fair value hierarchy of inputs is used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable
inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be
used when available. Observable inputs are those that market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Series Trust.
Unobservable inputs reflect the Series Trust’s assumptions about the inputs market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the
circumstances.

The fair value hierarchy is categorized into three levels based on the inputs as follows:

- Level | — Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Series Trust has the ability to access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability either directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

- Level 3 — Inputs that are unobservable and significant to the entire fair value measurement.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that
market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk.
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(Continued)

3. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input
that is significant to the fair value measurement. The Manager considers observable data to be that
market data which is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not
proprietary and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The categorization of a financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing
transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily correspond to the Manager’s perceived risk of
that instrument.

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets are classified within
Level 1.

Investments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on quoted
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are
classified within Level 2. As Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active
markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity
and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information.

Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently
or not at all. The Series Trust did not hold any Level 3 investments at March 19, 2024,

The following table presents the investments of the Series Trust measured at fair value within the fair
valuation hierarchy as of March 19, 2024;

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TRY TRY TRY TRY
Assets
Debt securities 210,000,000 1,384,799.825 - 1,594,799.825
210,000,000 1,384,799,825 - 1,594,799.825

There were no transfers of assets between levels during the year.

Repurchase agreements involve the purchase of a security from a counterparty, with an obligation of
the Series Trust to resell the security to the counterparty at a contracted price on maturity. In
connection with its repurchase agreements, it is the Series Trust’s policy that its Custodian, acting on
behalf of the Series Trust, take possession of the underlying collateral securities, the fair value of
which, at all times, to be least 110% of the principal amount of the repurchase agreements, including
accrued interest. If the counterparty defaults under repurchase agreements, and the fair value of the
collateral declines, the realization of the collateral by the Series Trust may be delayed or limited. As of
March 19, 2024, the Series Trust held no repurchase agreements.
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(Continued)

4. Financial Instruments and Related Risks

The main risks arising from the Series Trust’s financial instruments can be summarized as follows:

Market Risk
The Statement of Assets and Liabilities as of March 19, 2024, includes the fair value of debt securities.
These investments involve exposure to market risk.

The Series Trust’s strategy for the assumption of and management of market risk is driven by the
investment objective, which is disclosed in Note 1.

The value of the Series Trust’s financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices caused by factors other than interest rates or foreign currency movement.

On February 24, 2022, Russia launched a military invasion into Ukraine. Russia’s invasion of Ukraine
carries significant risks for the world economy. The ultimate impacts on the Series Trust of the
consequential geo-political instability, financial market volatility, inflation and imposition of sanctions
on Russia, and in an environment with relatively higher interest rates, are not possible to forecast at
this time.

Interest Rate Risk

Increases in interest rates typically lower the present value of the Series Trust’s future earnings stream.
Since the market price of a security changes continuously based upon the investors’ collective
perceptions of future earnings, security prices will generally decline when investors anticipate or
experience rising interest rates.

Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk represents the possibility that the Series Trust may not be able to rapidly adjust the size
of its investment position in times of high volatility and financial stress at a reasonable price.

The main liability of the Series Trust is the redemption of any Units that investors may wish to sell.
The Series Trust is exposed to daily cash redemptions of Redeemable Participating Units.

The liquidity of the Series Trust is a factor of the liquidity of the underlying investments. The Series
Trust’s assets mainly consist of readily realizable securities. In the opinion of the Manager this should
enable the payment of the Series Trust’s liabilities and any Unitholder’s redemption of Redeemable
Participating Units.

In the opinion of the Investment Manager, the majority of assets of the Series Trust held at March 19,
2024, can be liquidated within one month in normal circumstances.

Currency Risk
Since all of the investments and cash and cash equivalents of the Series Trust are denominated in the

functional currency of the Series Trust, the Statement of Assets and Liabilities and Statement of
Operations will not be significantly affected by currency movements.
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4. Financial Instruments and Related Risks (continued)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is measured by the loss the Series Trust would record if its counterparties failed to perform
pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Series Trust. The Trust will be exposed to credit risk on
parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of settlement default. In particular, the Series
Trust is exposed to credit risk with BBH, which has a Fitch credit rating of A+ and Akbank Malta
(Note 6) which has a Fitch credit rating of AA- (National Long Term Rating).

The Series Trust invests in debt securities. Adverse changes in the financial condition of the issuer, or
in general economic conditions, or both, or an unanticipated rise in interest rates, may impair the
ability of the issuer to make payments of interest and principal. The inability of issuers to make timely
payments of interest and principal may affect the value of securities held for the account of the Series
Trust. In the absence of a liquid trading market for certain securities it may not be possible to establish
the fair value of such securities in accordance with the valuation methodology of the Series Trust,
Furthermore, the credit risk of making such investments in emerging economies, generally tends to be
greater when compared to investing in developed countries.

As at March 19, 2024, the Series Trust invested in debt securities with the following credit quality:

Credit Rating TRY %o
(TR) AA* 228,175,444 14.31
(TR) AAA* 470,875,872 29.52
(TR) AA-* 895,748,509 56.17
Total 1,594,799,825 100.00

* National long term rating (Fitch, Saha, JCR, DRC and Kobirate)

Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions may include risks associated with the difference
between the valuations of the legs of such repurchase or reverse repurchase transactions. The price of
the collateral received or lent in such a transaction may adversely affect the Series Trust. In the event
of the failure of the relevant counterparty, inaccurate pricing, illiquidity of the relevant market in
which the collateral is traded and market movements may materially and adversely affect the
investment performance of the Series Trust. These effects may include, but are not limited to, a
sudden decrease in the NAV, delays in recovering cash, difficulties in realizing collateral and there
may be additional risks related to these effects. As of March 19, 2024, the Series Trust held no
repurchase agreements.

The Trustee has appointed the Custodian, whose ultimate parent Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings, Inc
has a JCR credit rating of AA. The Custodian has in turn appointed the Sub-Custodian. Both the cash
and securities are ultimately held at the Sub-Custodian, with cash being held at the Sub-Custodian as
banker. The Series Trust’s securities are maintained by the Sub-Custodian in segregated accounts, thus
in the event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Sub-Custodian, the Series Trust’s assets are segregated.
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(Continued)
4. Financial Instruments and Related Risks (continued)

Credit Risk (continued)

The Series Trust will, however, be exposed to the credit risk of the Sub-Custodian, or any depository
used by the Custodian or Sub-Custodian, in relation to the Series Trust’s cash. In the event of
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Sub-Custodian, the Series Trust will be treated as a general creditor of
the Sub-Custodian in relation to cash holdings of the Series Trust.

An investment universe which lists all the ratings of eligible securities that the Series Trust has traded
in is maintained, and monitored daily to record rating changes by Fitch. Any rating changes are
reported to the Investment Manager.

Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Sub-Custodian may cause the Series Trust rights with respect to its
investments in debt securities held by the bank to be delayed or limited.

5. Unit Capital

As a result of the ability to issue and redeem Units, the capital of the Series Trust can vary depending
on the demand for subscriptions and redemptions to/from the Series Trust. The minimum amount of
subscriptions or redemptions per Unitholder is one Unit and thereafter in one Unit increments.

Units are redeemable on each business day subject to the submission of a repurchase notice by no later
than 8am (Dublin time) on the relevant business day or such other deadline as the Investment Manager
may determine at the NAV per Unit prevailing at the close of business on the preceding valuation day,
failing which the repurchase request will be held over until the following dealing day and Units will be
redeemed at the repurchase price applicable for that dealing day.

The movements in the number of Units issued during the year ended March 19, 2024 are as follows:

Number of Units
Number of Units outstanding as at beginning of year 148,737,565,259
Number of Units issued 245,501,200,619
Number of Units redeemed (123,654,210,974)
Number of Units outstanding as at end of year 270,584,554,904

During the year ended March 19, 2024, distributions of TRYS506,464,959 were declared of which
TRY366,212,376 was reinvested back into the Series Trust.

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at March 19, 2024, is comprised of cash held with the Sub-Custodian and
deposits with maturities of 3 months or less held with Akbank Malta are as follows:

TRY
Cash - BBH 11,803,310
Deposit — Akbank Malta 1,061,860,813
Total 1,0'73!564,123
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7. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. In the opinion of
the Manager there were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of
business. The Manager, Investment Manager, Sub-Investment Manager, Trustee and Akbank T.A.S.
which is the counterparty to the deposits and holds 80,039,505 Units in the Series Trust, are deemed to
be related to the Series Trust. The Series Trust has deposits of TRY1,061,860,813 with Akbank Malta
(Note 6). Fees incurred with related parties during the year are disclosed in the Statement of Operations
and Note 8. Amounts payable to related parties at the year end are disclosed in the Statement of Assets
and Liabilities and Note 8.

Three investors hold an investment of 16.20%, 13.96% and 11.82%, respectively in the Series Trust. As
aresult, any actions of these related parties can materially impact the Series Trust.

8. Fees and Expenses

The Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.025% per annum of the
NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in US Dollars monthly in arrears,
subject to a minimum fee of TRY40,000 per calendar year.

The Trustee receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.04% per annum of the
NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in Euro monthly in arrears,
subject to a minimum fee of TRY43,000 per calendar year.

The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.30% per
annum of the NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in Japanese Yen
monthly in arrears.

The Sub-Investment Manager receives a fee at the rate of 0.55% per annum of the NAV, accrued on and
calculated as at each valuation day and payable in TRY monthly in arrears.

The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.08% per annum of
the NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and pavable in Euro monthly in arrears,
subject to a minimum fee of TRY8,900 per month. The Administrator will also be paid an audit
assistance fee of an amount equivalent in Euro to TRY8,900. In addition, the Administrator will also be
paid a fee of TRY270 in respect of each new Unitholder and a fee of TRY45 for each update of the
Register that it is required to undertake. The Administrator is also reimbursed for any reasonable out-of-
pocket expenses necessarily incurred in the performance of its duties.

The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.12% per annum of the
NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in US Dollars monthly in arrears,
subject to a minimum fee in US Dollars of an amount equivalent to TRY2,100 per month. The
Custodian is also reimbursed for any reasonable out-of-pocket expenses necessarily incurred in the
performance of its duties.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 19, 2024
(Continued)

8. Fees and Expenses (continued)

The distributors receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.35% per annum of the
NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in Japanese Yen monthly in

arrears. As at year end, there were 30 distributors to the Series Trust,

The Agent Company receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.10% per annum
of the NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in Japanese Yen monthly

in arrears.

The fees payable as at March 19, 2024 are as follows:

TRY

Investment Manager fees 422,605
Sub-Investment Manager fees 774,776
Distributors and Agent Company fees 632,118
Manager fees 35,217
Administration fees 146,016
Custodian fees 819,483
Trustee fees 56,347
Audit fees 773,618
Other fees and expenses 947,169
4,607,349

. Reconciliation of the Dealing NAV to NAV per Financial Statements

2024

TRY

Reported NAV 2,701,489,921
Trade date adjustment 4,355,720
NAYV attributable to Holders of Units per Financial Statements 2,705,845,641
Number of Units per Reported NAV 270,148,982,974
Trade date adjustment 435,571,930
Number of Units per Financial Statements 270,584,554,904
Reported NAV per Unit 0.01
NAYV per Unit per Financial Statements 0.01

For Unitholder dealing purposes, transactions are accounted for on a trade date plus 1 business day
basis. For financial reporting purposes, transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. Transactions
occurring between close of business on the last trade date and the financial reporting year end date have

required an adjustment of TRY4,355,720.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 19, 2024

(Continued)

10. Subsequent Events
The Manager has performed a subsequent review from March 19, 2024 through to August 22, 2024
being the date that the financial statements were available to be issued. From March 19, 2024 through to
August 22, 2024 investors subscribed TRY2,220,543,520 into the Series Trust and redeemed
TRY1,641,405,798 capital from the Series Trust.

The Manager concluded that there were no other subsequent events which required additional disclosure
in these financial statements.
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2025
5,107,091,053.77 18,538,740,525
16,462,314.43 59,758,201
5,090,628,739.34 18,478,982,324
509,062,853,418
0.01 0.0363
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2025 50,000 ( 724 500
) 41,667
2) (2025 )
(
) SOMPO
( )
( ) )
2025
( )
401,411,000
( 581 2,833 )
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)
2024 12 31
2024 2023
( ) C ) ( ) «c )
1,571,477 227,566 2,158,914 312,632
4 600,415 86,946 526,807 76,287
284,480 41,196 293,139 42,449
9 194,226 28,126 279,944 40,539
2,650,598 383,833 3,258,804 471,907
5 344,549 49,894 251,974 36,488
344,549 49,894 251,974 36,488
2,995,147 433,727 3,510,778 508,396
20,000 2,896 55,022 7,968
931,854 134,942 694,169 100,523
517,977 75,008 777,688 112,617
875,316 126,755 1,333,899 193,162
2,345,147 339,601 2,860,778 414,269
6 50,000 7,241 50,000 7,241
600,000 86,886 600,000 86,886
650,000 94,127 650,000 94,127
2,995,147 433,727 3,510,778 508,396
2025 28
)
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2024 12 31
2024 2023
( ) « D ( ) C D

8,273,035 1,198,018 8,324,352 1,205,449

4 (12,263) (1,776) (55,868) (8,090)

8,260,772 1,196,242 8,268,484 1,197,359

912,363 132,119 1,181,172 171,046

51,219 7,417 51,219 7,417

9,224,354 1,335,779 9,500,875 1,375,822

7,8,9 7,329,137 1,061,332 6,925,470 1,002,877

1,895,217 274,446 2,575,405 372,944

2024 12 31

( ) « D ( ) C ) ( ) C )
2022 12 31 50,000 7,241 600,000 86,886 650,000 94,127
- - 2,575,405 372,944 2,575,405 372,944
- - (2,575,405)  (372,944)  (2,575,405)  (372,944)
2023 12 31 50,000 7,241 600,000 86,886 650,000 94,127
- - 1,895,217 274,446 1,895,217 274,446
- - (1,895,217)  (274,446)  (1,895,217)  (274,446)
2024 12 31 50,000 7,241 600,000 86,886 650,000 94,127
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2024 12 31
2024 2023
( ) C ) ( ) C )
1,895,217 274,446 2,575,405 372,944
57,792 8,369 19,511 2,825
12,263 1,776 55,868 8,090
(85,871) (12,435) 85,287 12,350
8,659 1,254 (167,138) (24,203)
85,718 12,413 10,715 1,552
(35,022) (5.,072) (48,491) (7.022)
237,685 34,419 (148,082) (21,444)
(259,711) (37,609) 75,087 10,873
1,916,730 277,562 2,458,162 355,966
(150,367) (21,775) (13,085) (1,895)
(150,367) (21,775) (13,085) (1,895)
(2,353,800)  (340,854)  (2,189,848)  (317,112)
(587,437) (85,067) 255,229 36,960
2,158,914 312,632 1,903,685 275,673
1,571,477 227,566 2,158,914 312,632
2024 12 31
( )
( 1974
30 (2023 )
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1988 13 2010
(2024 ) ) 1994
27 (2021 )y 12
2004 (2021 )
2006 12 28
IMS 2024 12 31
IMS IMS
( )
KY1-1102
61
2024 12 31 21 (2023 22 )
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( 1ASB )
( IFRS )
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©
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( )
(2021 (2024 ) 2010 (2021
) (2021 )
40 (50 )
(h)2024
2024

(€),

SH ** 2001 20

A.S. 1978 27

N.D. 1978 27

N.S. 1978 27

* 1979 10 26

IMS * 2012 27

IMS 2013 25

* 2024 2023 12 31

**  SH 2024 12 24 2025
)

(
)
©)
90 180

140/226



@)

)

C)

¢ )

(e)

)

@)

2.5 (
20 (
10 (

10 (

)

141/226

EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

M)

()

k)

a
¢ )

¢ )

¢ )

30

142/226



EDINETOOOO

o = 2573
ooooodooodnoooooodd

2024 2023
0 30 355,039 209,518
31 60 60,284 52,579
61 90 14,002 81,472
91 171,090 183,238

600,415 526,807
2024 2023
998,400 962,841
(397,985) (436,034)
600,415 526,807
2024 2023
436,034 478,916
12,263 55,868
(50,312) (98,750)
397,985 436,034
2024
341,637 431,670 245,893 156,891 1,176,001
- 16,968 6,629 126,770 150,367
341,637 448,638 252,522 283,661 1,326,458
200,788 401,348 204,300 117,681 924,117
3,521 8,033 5,645 40,593 57,792
204,309 409,381 209,945 158,274 981,909
2024 12 31
137,328 39,257 42,577 125,387 344,549
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2023
341,637 421,491 242,987 156,891 1,163,006
- 10,179 2,906 - 13,085
341,637 431,670 245,893 156,891 1,176,001
197,176 395,118 198,987 113,325 904,606
3,612 6,230 5,313 4,356 19,511
200,788 401,348 204,300 117,681 924,117
2023 12 31
140,849 30,322 41,593 39,210 251,974
2024 2023
80,000 ( ) 96,000 96,000
41,667 (2023 41,667 ) 50,000 50,000
2022 2023
( )
2024
11,255.75 12,279 12,585.98
12,900.62
2024 2023
135,069 134,057
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543,233 -
678,302 134,057
2024
12 31 98,247 (2023 98,077
)
2024 12 31
2024 2023
463,686 451,610
2024 2023
194,226 279,944
2024 12 31 5,672,246 (2023
5,438,235 ) 98,247 (2023 98,077 )
10.
2024 12 31
(2023 )
11.
2025 28
12. -
2024 2023
8,273,035 8,324,352
4 (12,263) (55,868)
8,260,772 8,268,484
912,363 1,181,172
51,219 51,219
9,224,354 9,500,875

5,770,493 5,536,312
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283,918 341,357
432,953 298,821
247,965 223,854
159,165 138,296
162,142 144,147
85,976 89,508
57,792 19,511
33,210 51,660
22,307 13,734
29,584 26,342
30,785 32,194
12,847 9,734
7,329,137 6,925,470
1,895,217 2,575,405
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2024
(stated in United States dollars)

Note 2024 2023
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,571,477 2,158,914
Accounts receivable 4 600,415 526,807
Other receivables and prepaid expenses 284,480 293,139
Due from affiliated companies 9 194,226 279,944
2,650,598 3,258,804
Non-carrent assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 344,549 251,974
344,549 251,974
Total assets USE 2,995,147 3,510,778
Liabilities and shareholder’s equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 20,000 55,022
Unearned income and payable to clients 931,854 694,169
Staff bonuses payable 517,977 777,688
Dividends payable 875,316 1,333,899
2,345,147 2,860,778
Shareholder’s equity
Share capital 6 50,000 50,000
Retained eamings 600,000 600,000
650,000 650,000
Total liabilities and shareholder’s equity US$ 2,995,147 3,510,778

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements,
Approved on behalf of the Board on March 28, 2025.

Mike McDonald

Director
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended December 31, 2024
(stated in United States dollars)

Note 2024 2023
Income
Revenue 8,273,035 8,324,352
Bad debts written off 4 (12,263) (55,868)
8,260,772 8,268,484
Other income 912,363 1,181,172
Rental income 51,219 51,219
9,224 354 9,500,875
Expenses
Administration expenses 7,8,9 7,329,137 6,925,470
Net income US$ 1,895,217 2,575,405

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity

For the year ended December 31, 2024
(stated in United States dollars)
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Share Retained

capital earnings Total
Balance at December 31, 2022 50,000 600,000 650,000
Net income - 2,575,405 2,575,405
Dividends declared - (2,575405) (2,575,403)
Balance at December 31, 2023 50,000 600,000 650,000
Net income - 1,895,217 1,895,217
Dividends declared - (1,895217) (1,895,217)
Balance at December 31, 2024 US$ 50,000 600,000 650,000

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2024
fsrated in United States dollars)

2024 2023
Operating activities
Net income 1,895,217 2,575,405
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation 57,792 19,511
Movement in provision for doubtful accounts 12,263 55,868
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by
operations:
Accounts receivable (85,871) 85,287
Other receivables and prepaid expenses 8,659 (167,138)
Due from affiliated companies 85,718 10,715
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (35,022) (48,491)
Unearned income and payable to clients 237,685 (148,082)
Staff bonuses payable (259,711) 75,087
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,916,730 2,458,162
Investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (150,367) (13,085)
Net cash used in investing activities {150,367) (13,085)
Financing activities
Dividends paid (2,353,800) (2,189,848)
Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year (587,437) 255,229
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 2,158,914 1,903,685
Cash and cash equivalents end of year US$ 1,571,477 2,158,914

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024
(stated in United States dollars)

1. Incorporation and background information

International Management Services Ltd. (the “Company™) was incorporated under the Companies
Act (2023 Revision) of the Cayman Islands on August 30, 1974 and provides company and insurance
management and corporate secretarial services. On December 12, 1985, the Company was licensed
under Section 4 (5) of the Companies Management Act (2021 Revision) to carry on the business of
company management in or within the Cayman Islands. On May 13, 1988, the Company was
licensed under Section 4 (2) of The Insurance Act 2010 (2024 Revision), to carry on the business
of insurance management in or within the Cayman Islands. On July 27, 1994, the Company was
licensed under Section 12 of The Mutual Funds Act (2021 Revision) to carry on the business of
mutual fund administration. On June 7, 2004 the Company was licensed under the Banks and Trust
Companies Act (2021 Revision), to carry on trust business from within the Cayman Islands. On
December 28, 2006, the Company surrendered its Companies Management Licence.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of The IMS Group Ltd., a company also incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. During the year ended December 31, 2024, the ownership of IMS Group
Ltd. has changed by sale and purchase of issued share capital of the IMS Group Ltd.

The financial results of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
consolidated at year end to form the Group.

The registered office of the Company is 4® Floor Harbour Centre, George Town, P.O. Box 61, Grand
Cayman KY1-1102, Cayman Islands.

The Group had 2] employees as at December 31, 2024 (2023: 22).

2. Basis of presentation
(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared by the Group in accordance with the ‘International
Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities (“IFRS for SMEs”)’ issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™). The principal accounting policies
applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(b) Going concern

Management has made an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
is satisfied that the Group has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future.
Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast a significant
doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the consolidated
financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

(c) Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024
(stated in United States dollars)

2. Basis of presentation (continued)

(d) Functional and presentation currency

The Group’s functional and presentation currency is the United States dollar ("US$”) and not
the local currency of the Cayman Islands reflecting the fact that the Group’s operations are
primarily conducted in United States dollars.

(e) Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

‘When preparing the Group’s consolidated financial statements, management makes a number
of judgements, estimates and assumptions about the recognition and measurement of assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses.

Significant management judgement

There were no significant judgements made by the management during the year.

Estimation uncertainty

Estimates during the year are in relation to accounts receivable as described in note 3(c).
() Corresponding figures

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
(g) Capital management

The Group’s regulator, the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority (the “Authority”), sets and
monitors capital requirements for the Group under the Monefary Authority Law (2021
Revision), the Companies Management Act (2024 Revision), the Insurance Act, 2010, the
Mutual Funds Act (2021 Revision) and the Bank and Trust Companies Act (2021 Revision).
The Group is required to have a minimum net worth of CI$400,000 (US$500,000) and has a 3
month filing deadline after year end date. The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base
to sustain future development of the business. The Group has complied with all imposed capital
requirements throughout the year, and there were no material changes to the Group’s
management of capital during the year.

(k) New Standards effective for annual period beginning 1 January 2024

There are no new standards or amendments effective for annual periods beginning 1 January
2024 that will have a significant impact to the Group.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =~

December 31, 2024
(stated in United States dollars)

3. Material accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements. There have been no changes to accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are as follows:

(a) Consolidated wholly owned subsidiaries

Company Business Date of incorporation/addition
SH Corporate Services Ltd** Registered Office Services April 20, 2001
A.S. Nominees Ltd.* Nominee Company January 27, 1978
N.D. Nominee Ltd. * Nominee Company January 27, 1978
N.S. Nominee Ltd.* Nominee Company January 27, 1978
Cardinal Nominee Limited* Nominee Company October 26, 1979
IMS Trustees Ltd.* Trustee Services April 27, 2012
IMS Liquidations Ltd. Liquidation Services January 25, 2013

* These wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company have been established to act only in a
nominee capacity and have not traded in their own right during the years ended December
31, 2024 and 2023.

** 8H Corporate Services Ltd’s corporate services licence has been cancelled with an effective
date of 24 December 2024. The Company will be deemed to be dissolved on May 1, 2025.

All income earned and expenses incurred by these companies are accounted for by the Company
and all inter-company transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences to the date that control ceases. The Group accounts for business
combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred to the Group. The
consideration is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired.

(&) Financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments are initially measured at the transaction price (this includes transaction
cost except in the initial measurement of financial assets and liabilities that will be measured at
fair value through profit or loss). If, however the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction

it is then measured at the present value of the future payments, discounted at a market related
interest rate.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024
(stated in United States dollars)

3. Material accounting policies (continued)
(c) Accounts receivables

Accounts receivables represent amounts due from clients and related parties for services
performed in the normal course of business. Most sales are made on the basis of normal credit
terms, and the receivables do not bear interest. Where credit is extended beyond normal credit
terms, receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Other
receivables are considered past due after 90 to 180 days. At the end of each reporting period,
the carrying amounts of accounts receivable are reviewed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence that the amounts are not recoverable. If so, an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

(d) Revenue Recognition

The Group recognises revenue in the amount expected to be received for services supplied at a
point in time or over time as contractual performance obligations are fulfilled and control of
services passes to the customer.

Where the contractual performance obligations are satisfied over time and revenue is recognised
over time.

Where performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time, revenue is recognised when the
risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the customer. This is at the point where the
service is delivered fo the customer and there are no unfulfilled obligations that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the service.

Nature of services

The following is a description of the principal activities from which the Group generates its
revenue,

(t) Professional services

Fees generated from a range of professional services including directorship services,
captive insurance management services, trustec services and anti-money laundering
services.

(ii} Management fee from related party
Fees generated from the provision of administration services to a related party.
(iii) Registered office services

Fees generated from the provision of registered office services.

10
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024
(stated in United States dollars)

3. Material accounting policies (continued)
{d) Revenue Recognition (continued)
Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies

The Group recognizes revenue from the provision of fiduciary and registered office services to
client companies. The specific services required involve the provision of a director to act in his
fiduciary capacity for client companies as well as the provision of a client company registered
office for a set annual fee. In addition, as part of the contractual terms, client companies also
require corporate services throughout the financial year on the basis of fees specified in the
contract,

(e} Foreign currency
Assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at rates of
exchange prevailing at the consolidated statements of financial position date. Transactions in
foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction.

Any resulting exchange gains or losses are credited or debited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

() Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents is comprised of current bank accounts held with financial institutions
with original terms to maturity of three months or less.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment loss.

Depreciation is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income after taking
into account residual values over the following expected useful lives of the assets using the

respective methods:
Office building 2.5% pa. Reducing Balance
Computer equipment 20% p.a. Straight Line Method
Furniture and equipment 10% p.a. Reducing Balance
Leasehold improvements 10% p.a. Reducing Balance

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment, Impairment losses are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year in which they are identified.

(h) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

11
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024
(stated in United States dollars)

3. Material accounting policies (continued)
(i} Income recognition and fees billed in advance

Management fees are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the period for which services are provided.

Unearned income and payable to clients comprise funds received from clients as prepayments
for services to be performed in future years.

(i) Other income

Other income comprises various income items, primarily consisting of amounts earned by the
Group through arrangements with certain employees to share in fees charged by these employees
to non-Group clients.

(k) Expenses

Expenses are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on the accrual
basis.

1) Employee benefits
(i)  Defined contribution pension plan

The Group participates in a defined contribution plan. A defined contribution plan is a
post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation if the plan does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are
recognised as an expense in the consolidated siatement of comprehensive income as
incurred.
(it} Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount
expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(m) Assets under administration
In the normal course of business, the Group provides fiduciary services by acting as trustee of
Trusts. The assets and liabilities of the Trusts under the Group’s management are not incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements.

4. Accounts Receivable

The nature of the Group’s exposure to credit risk and its objectives, policies, and processes for
managing credit risk have not changed significantly from the prior year. The Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk is the carrying value of its financial assets. The Group establishes an
allowance for bad and doubtful accounts that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of
accounts receivable,

12
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024
(stated in United States dollars)

4. Accounts Receivable (continued)

The Group manages credit risk in respect of accounts receivables by performing periodic reviews
of outstanding customer balances. Management does not expect any significant counterparties to
fail to meet their obligations. Management believes that unimpaired amounts that are past due more
than 30 days are still collectible in full.

The Group’s aging of accounts receivables at the reporting date was:

2024 2023

0 to 30 days 355,039 209,518
31 to 60 days 60,284 52,579
61 to 90 days 14,002 81,472
More than 91 days 171,090 183,238
US$ 600,415 526,807

The Group’s accounts receivables at the reporting date were:

2024 2023

Gross accounts receivable 098,400 962,841
Provision for doubtful accounts (397,985) (436,034)
US$ 600,415 526,807

Movements in the provision for doubtful accounts during the year are as follows:

2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year 436,034 478,916
Charge to statement of comprehensive income 12,263 55,868
Bad debts written off (50,312) (98,750)

USS 397,985 436,034
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024
(stated in United States dollars)

5. Property, plant and equipment

Office ~ Computer Furniture & Leasehold
2024 building equipment equipment improvements Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning 341,637 431,670 245,893 156,891 1,176,091
of year
Additions - 16,968 6,629 126,770 150,367
Balance at end of year 341,637 448 638 252,522 283,661 1,326,458
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at beginning 200,788 401,348 204,300 117,681 024,117
of year
Charge for year 3,521 8,033 5,645 40,593 57,792
Balance at end of year 204,309 409,381 209,945 158,274 981,909
Net book value at
December 31, 2024 US§ 137,328 39,257 42,577 125,387 344,549
Office  Computer Furniture & Leasehold
2023 building equipment equipment improvements Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning 341,637 421,491 242 987 156,891 1,163,006
of year
Additions - 10,179 2,906 - 13,085
Balance at end of year 341,637 431,670 245,893 156,891 1,176,091
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at beginning 197,176 395,118 198,987 113,325 904,606
of year
Charge for year 3,612 6,230 5,313 4356 19,511
Balance at end of year 200,788 401,348 204,300 117,681 924,117
Net book value at
December 31, 2023 US§ 140,849 30,322 41,593 39,210 251,974

14
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024
(stated in United States dollars)

6. Share capital

2024 2023
Authorised:
80,000 shares of CI$1 each US$ 96,000 96,000
Issued and fully paid:
41,667 shares (2022: 41,667) US$ 50,000 50,000
7. Leases

The Group has a lease for its operating premises, a floor of an office building. The Group classifies
this lease as an operating lease, the lease is for a period of 5 years commencing 1 May 2024. The
rent payable under the lease is US$11,255.75 per month for the period of the lease for the first and
second year, US$12,279 per month for the third vear, US$12,585.98 for the fourth year and
US$12,500.62 per month for the final year of the lease.

The lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Group to
sublet the asset to another party, the premises can only be used by the Group. Leases may only be
cancelled by incurring a substantive termination fee.

The table below describes the nature of the Group’s leasing activities:

Future minimum lease payments

The total of future minimum lease payments under the lease may be analysed as follows:

2024 2023

Less than one year 135,069 134,057
Greater than one year but less than five years 543,233 -
Us$ 678,302 134,057

15
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024
(stated in United States dollars)

8. Defined contribution pension plan

The Group participates in the Island Heritage Retirement Plan, a defined contribution pension
scheme. The Group is required to match each employee’s contribution on a one to one basis up to
5% of the employee’s annual salary. During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group
contributed US$98,247 (2023: US$98,077).

9. Related party transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group earned the following administration and
management fees from its affiliated companies:

2024 2023
Corporate Filing Services Ltd. US$ 463,686 451,610
Amounts due from related affiliates are as follows:

2024 2023
Corporate Filing Services Ltd, US$ 194,226 279,944

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group paid US$5,672,246 (2023: US$5,438,235) in
short-term employment benefits and US$98,247 (2023: US$98,077) in long-term employment
benefits to key management personnel.

10. Contingencies

The Group, in its fiduciary capacity, may be a party to litigation and claims in the normal course of
business. In the opinion of the Directors, which is based on the advice of the Group’s legal counsel,
no contingency provisions are required at December 31, 2024 (2023: USSNIl).

11. Subsequent events

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has evaluated and disclosed all
material subsequent events up to March 28,2025 which is the date that the consolidated financial
statements were available fo be issued.

16
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024
(stated in United States dollars)

12. Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income — Detailed

Note 2024 2023
Income
Management fees 8,273,035 8,324,352
Bad debis 4 (12,263) (55,868)
8,260,772 8,268,484
Other income 912,363 1,181,172
Rental income 51,219 51,219
9,224,354 9,500,875
Expenses
Salaries and related costs 5,770,493 5,536,312
Rent expense 283,918 341,357
Office supplies and sundries 432,953 298,821
Government Fees 247,965 223,854
Professional Fees 159,165 138,296
Insurance 162,142 144,147
Utilities 85,976 89,508
Depreciation 57,792 19,511
Advertising and Marketing 33,210 51,660
Subscriptions 22,307 13,734
Repairs and Maintenance 29,584 26,342
Donations 30,785 32,194
Bank charges 12,847 9,734
7,329,137 6,925,470
Net income USS 1,895,217 2,575,405
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Turkish Lira Money Market Fund (the
““Series Trust””), a series trust of Multi Strategies Fund, which comprise the
statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of investments as at
March 19, 2025, the statements of operations, changes in net assets, cash flows and
the financial highlights for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements and financial highlights
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Series Trust
as at March 19, 2025, and the results of its operations, its cash flows and the
financial highlights for the year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(““ISAs””). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
““Auditors” Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements”” section of
our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (““IESBA Code””)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Restriction on Use

This report is made solely to the Trustee in accordance with the terms of our
engagement. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trustee
those matters we are required to state to the Trustee in an auditor®s report and for
no other purpose. We do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Trustee, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust"s

financial reporting process.
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Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors® report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust®s internal
control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series
Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors™ report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors® report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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KPMG LLP
August 21, 2025
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Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Turkish Lira Money Market
Fund (the ““Series Trust””), a series trust of Multi Strategies Fund, which comprise
the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of investments as at
March 19, 2024, the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Series Trust as at March 19, 2024, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with US generally accepted accounting principles ("'U.S. GAAP™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(““ISAs””). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
““Auditor”s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements”” section of
our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (““IESBA Code””)
together with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Restriction on Use

This report is made solely to the Trustee in accordance with the terms of our
engagement. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trustee
those matters we are required to state to the Trustee in an auditor®s report and for
no other purpose. We do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Trustee, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinion we have formed.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

218/226



EDINETOOOO

o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust"s

financial reporting process.
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Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust®s internal
control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series
Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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KPMG LLP
August 23, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®"S REPORT
To the Directors of International Management Services Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of International Management Services Ltd. (the
““Company””), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December
31, 2024, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
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changes in shareholder®s equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2024, and its financial
performance and its cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards for Small and Medium-Sized Entities (““IFRS for SMEs””) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB).

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for the Company®s directors as a body
for regulatory filing purposes only. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or
into whose hands it may come, save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (““I1SAs””). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for

Accountants® International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS for SMEs as issued by the IASB, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to

liquidate the Company or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company®"s financial reporting

process.

Auditor”s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
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auditor”s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

eldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

eObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control.

eEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

«Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company®s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor"s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

eEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audits.

Grant Thornton (Cayman) LLP
George Town

Grand Cayman

March 28, 2025
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